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WEBINAR RECORDING 
1) Will this webinar be made available for future reference? 

Yes. The Information Session webinars are posted on our Funding page for this RFQ at: 
https://www.first5la.org/article/reissue-of-hmg-la-pathways-technical-assistance-provider-rfq/.  

 
ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 
 

Proposers must meet the following 
minimum eligibility requirements: 

 

Location:  
 
Original – Proposers must have and 
maintain a permanent physical office 
location within a 70-mile radius of First 5 
LA’s office for the duration of the project. 

 
 
Revised – Proposers must have and maintain a permanent 
physical office location in the state of California within a 70-mile 
radius of First 5 LA’s office for the duration of the project. 

Proposers cannot be a First 5 LA HMG-LA 
Pathways Unifying Agency, Collaborative 
Agency or other subcontractor, or a 
Supporting Partner. 

The following organizations have been selected as Unifying 
Agencies (pending Board approval): Community 1: Child Care 
Resource Center (CCRC); Community 3: Children’s Bureau of 
Southern California; Community 4: Westside Regional Center (WRC); 
Community 5: Heluna Health/Eastern Los Angeles Family Resource 
Center; and Community 6: South Central Los Angeles Regional 
Center (SCLARC). 
 
If you are unsure whether you or your organization may not meet 
the eligibility requirement identified in Section VI. Eligibility below 
because you or your organization might be part of a Unifying 
Agency, Collaborative Agency or Supporting Partner, please submit 
your inquiry through the following link: 
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSdsbXX7iAfejCEsa-
4_mgRVoFO-H9dwSb227Z8buCVc5wcqCg/viewform?usp=sf_link  

 

2) A program at my university has agreed to be a Collaborative Agency for a HMG LA Pathways 
community. Would that preclude my university from applying to be the TA Provider? 
University staff not affiliated with the program acting as a Collaborative Agency may be able to 
apply. If you are unsure whether you or your organization may not meet the eligibility requirement 
identified in Section VI. Eligibility below because you or your organization might be part of a Unifying 
Agency, Collaborative Agency or Supporting Partner, please submit your inquiry through the 
following link: https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSdsbXX7iAfejCEsa-4_mgRVoFO-
H9dwSb227Z8buCVc5wcqCg/viewform?usp=sf_link.  
 

3) What kinds of agencies typically apply for these grants? Would a university-based grant be 
competitive?  
First 5 LA is seeking proposals from individuals and organizations interested in serving as the HMG-
LA Pathways Technical Assistance (TA) Provider. Individuals and organizations must meet the 
eligibility requirements (listed above). Proposals will be scored using the scoring criteria listed in 
Appendix E. Individuals and organizations, including universities, that meet this eligibility and align 
to the desired qualifications are encouraged to submit a proposal. 

https://www.first5la.org/article/reissue-of-hmg-la-pathways-technical-assistance-provider-rfq/
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSdsbXX7iAfejCEsa-4_mgRVoFO-H9dwSb227Z8buCVc5wcqCg/viewform?usp=sf_link
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSdsbXX7iAfejCEsa-4_mgRVoFO-H9dwSb227Z8buCVc5wcqCg/viewform?usp=sf_link
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSdsbXX7iAfejCEsa-4_mgRVoFO-H9dwSb227Z8buCVc5wcqCg/viewform?usp=sf_link
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSdsbXX7iAfejCEsa-4_mgRVoFO-H9dwSb227Z8buCVc5wcqCg/viewform?usp=sf_link
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To clarify, this is not a grant. Please review Section VIII. Terms of Project for a description of the 
contract and the payment structure for this project.  
 

4) Would a home office meet this eligibility, or does it have to be commercial space? 
First 5 LA’s eligibility requirements require that proposers must have and maintain a permanent 
physical office location in the state of California for the duration of the project. The key term for this 
eligibility requirement is permanent physical location. A home office is acceptable. First 5 LA may 
request additional information to validate this eligibility requirement.   
 

5) Can members of our team live out of state if they are willing to travel? Or collaborate 
telephonically or virtually? 
First 5 LA’s eligibility requirements require that proposers have and maintain a permanent physical 
office location in the state of California for the duration of the project; this refers to all key 
personnel. The intent of this requirement is to ensure a TA Provider who is: familiar with the L.A. 
County landscape, available for in-person meetings once it is safe to do so, and to reduce travel 
costs. This requirement includes key personnel. 
 
First 5 LA will work with the selected proposer during negotiations to determine communication 
platforms to meet telephonically or virtually during the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 

6) I wanted to confirm understanding of what meets the location requirement.  We are based in the 
Bay Area; however we have a staff member currently working remotely from a home office in 
LA.  If you can confirm what meets the official location requirements, in terms of type of office, 
documentation requirements, etc. it would be greatly appreciated.  
Please refer to the above (Q5) for clarification on the location eligibility requirement. Please note 
the June 10, 2020 addendum which revised the location eligibility requirement to “Proposers must 
have and maintain a permanent physical office location in the state of California for the duration of 
the project.”  
 
The online application will ask about the Proposer’s Organization address. The online application will 
also ask for a County of Los Angeles address if it is different than the Proposer Organization’s 
address. First 5 LA may request additional information to validate this eligibility requirement.   
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UNIFYING AGENCIES 
7) Will there only be five Unifying Agencies participating in the initial 8-month term? 

First 5 LA has not determined if and when we will release another solicitation focusing on the 
missing communities. However, anticipate that only 5 communities will be participating in initial 8-
month term. 
 

BUDGET 
8) With regards to the project $600,000 budget, is this 600 per year, per site, or is it 600 over 3 

years? 
Pursuant to Section VIII. Terms of the Project, the $600,000 budget is for the entire three (3) year 
project term. The $600,000 budget allocation anticipates seven (7) HMG LA Pathways communities.  
 

9) When proposing our budget, should we include costs for the initial 8-month period or for the 
three-year term? 
We are not asking proposers to submit a budget for this RFQ. Proposers are being asked to submit 
Appendix J, where they shall clearly indicate the proposed hourly rates for each key proposed 
personnel for each task.  

 
Add additional columns for staff as needed. In addition, provide a narrative rationale for your 
proposed rates and any anticipated travel costs.  
 
First 5 LA will execute a task order contract.  First 5 LA will issue tasks orders for each assignment 
with a specific scope and schedule. The number of hours per assignment shall be negotiated before 
work commences. Invoices will be paid based upon the negotiated hourly rates and number of 
hours per assignment.  Travel expenses, if any, should not exceed 5% of the total project’s budget. 
The TA Provider shall only perform work under task orders when authorized in writing by the 
designated First 5 LA staff.    
 

10) Can an 8% administration fee be part of the budget? We probably can't do it through the 
university without that, especially since we would be using an office there. 
Proposed hourly rates for key proposed personnel should include any administrative fees. As 
detailed in the RFQ, please provide a rationale for your proposed rates, including any administrative 
fees. 
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11) For outside experts that require fees and other payments, are those payments included within the 
$600,000, or would that be covered by HMG-LA outside of the project budget? 
Yes, any costs associated with outside experts that the TA Provider works with to carry out their 
scope of work in included within the $600,000 budget.  
 
First 5 LA may require the selected TA Provider to perform additional activities related to the scope 
of work described above based on emergent learning and our desire to respond to unique needs of 
this project. First 5 LA will execute a task order contract.  First 5 LA will issue tasks orders for each 
assignment with a specific scope and schedule. The number of hours per assignment shall be 
negotiated before work commences. Invoices will be paid based upon the negotiated hourly rates 
and number of hours per assignment.  Travel expenses, if any, should not exceed 5% of the total 
project’s budget. The TA Provider shall only perform work under task orders when authorized in 
writing by the designated First 5 LA staff.   The possible exception to this is if there are training and 
capacity needs of Unifying Agencies that emerge during the project, which will be discussed with 
First 5 LA. 
 

12) Will travel be an allowable expense in the contract? 
Travel is an allowable expense. Please note, however, travel expenses, if any, should not exceed 5% 
of the total project’s budget. 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
13) Are the quarterly implementation summaries and annual pathways reports expected for phase 1 

work? Or just for Phase 2 and 3 when implementation data is able to be collected?  
It is anticipated that these deliverables will be submitted throughout the course of the project. Final 
scope of work including deliverables will the negotiated with the selected TA Provider.  
 

14) Given the initial contract end date of June 30, 2021, does First 5 LA expect that Phase 1 activities 
and deliverables are complete by that date, or is it possible for Phase 1 to extend beyond the 
initial 8 months? 
It is possible that Phase 1 activities and deliverables may extend beyond the initial agreement 
period. First 5 LA is currently in contract negotiations with the selected Unifying Agencies (pending 
Board approval), including their scope of work which may impact the TA activities and related 
deliverables and timeline. Final scope of work including deliverables will be negotiated with the 
selected TA Provider.  
 

15) We understand from the RFQ that the focus and timeframe for each phase will differ. Is there an 
expected timeline for each phase? 
There is not a standardized timeframe for each phase of the project, although in their proposals the 
selected agencies anticipated that Phase 1 activities would last one year (12 months). Note that First 
5 LA is currently in contract negotiations with the selected Unifying Agencies (pending Board 
approval) and their proposed timelines may change. 
 

SUBCONTRACTING TASKS 
16) The RFQ states, "The TA Provider may also subcontract if they lack expertise in a certain area (e.g. 

technology platforms, database design etc.) for consultation purposes."  To what extent does this 
apply to any aspect of tasks 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 8, 9 and 10 that cannot be subcontracted by the TA 
Provider? 
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In order to successfully design and provide TA support for the Unifying Agencies representing the up 
to seven (7) HMG-LA Pathways Communities, First 5 LA has outlined 10 distinct tasks over the 
duration of the entire project.  First 5 LA expects that the TA Provider oversees all 10 tasks outlined 
in the Scope of Work section. The TA Provider cannot subcontract out Tasks 1, 3, 4, 7, 8, 9 and 10.  
 
By design, the desired qualifications we are seeking for this project were identified as they directly 
support the scope of work outlined. However, we also acknowledge that some interested proposers 
may have strengths in some areas but not necessarily for all of the listed tasks and activities. We 
have identified some tasks which may require additional support via a consultant with specific 
expertise. Therefore, the TA Provider may subcontract only Tasks 2, 5 and 6 if they lack expertise 
in a certain area (e.g., technology platforms, database design, etc.) for consultation purposes.  
 

COLLABORATION 
17) We are interested in supporting a primary proposer on Tasks 5 and 6, but we do not know any 

proposers to whom we might offer our support. Might you have any recommendations for us? 
First 5 LA cannot recommend partnerships for competitive solicitations. The TA Provider may 
subcontract Task 2, Task 5 and Task 6 if they lack expertise in a certain area (e.g., technology 
platforms, database design, etc.) for consultation purposes. Please see the response to Question 17 
below on how to explore potential partnerships.  
 

18) Will a participant list for those on the webinar be made available should attendees wish to 
explore potential partnerships? 
Given that the TA Provider can subcontract Tasks 2, 5 and 6, we have created a Network List for 
purposes of networking with other potential proposers who gave permission to be listed. Please 
note that networking with other potential proposers is voluntary and is not a requirement to 
apply to this solicitation. This list can be found via the online Funding Center and may be viewed 
directly here: https://www.first5la.org/uploads/files/hmg-la-pathways-ta-provider-rfq-network-
list_44.pdf. 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENTS 
19) Does a cover letter count toward the 14-page narrative max? Will cover letters be sent to 

reviewers with the rest of the submission packet? 
The narrative has a maximum of 14 pages to address: 
 

• Technical Assistance Approach: Propose an approach to providing technical assistance 
across the total project period. Include strategies, methodology and the general approach to 
monitoring progress, identifying issues and fostering collaboration.   

o Please also discuss approach to continuous quality improvement and learning. In 
the event that communities are added after a second solicitation, explain your 
approach to how you would reconcile work to date to onboard the new 
communities and ensure cohesiveness across the communities.   

o  As indicated by Section VIII. Terms of the Project, the TA Provider must be able to 
utilize virtual and telephonic communication platforms to deliver TA activities as 
well as have in-person accessibility. Please detail the method you intend to use to 
deliver the described approach (e.g., in-person, virtually, a combination of both). If 
you have key personnel not in the L.A. County area, include how they will be 
accessible to Unifying Agencies.     

https://www.first5la.org/uploads/files/hmg-la-pathways-ta-provider-rfq-network-list_44.pdf
https://www.first5la.org/uploads/files/hmg-la-pathways-ta-provider-rfq-network-list_44.pdf
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• Organizational Experience:  
o Describe your (your team’s) responsiveness to all desired qualifications listed in 

Section VII. Summary of Desired Qualifications.  
 

o  Provide a brief list of similar types of projects that were successfully concluded. 
Please describe your specific role played in the project and how it led to the 
outcomes described. 

 
Please do not include a cover letter for the narrative. As discussed in Section X. Required Documents, 
applications that exceed First 5 LA’s page limitation requirements will be adjusted by the removal of 
page(s) from the application. Pages will be removed before the Level 2: Proposal Review. The 
removed page(s) will not be made available to reviewers. 
 

SELECTION PROCESS 
20) Should we assume that the reviewers are familiar with both L.A. County and its previous HMG 

work? 
As discussed in Section IX. Selection Process and Review Criteria, the Proposal Review and Interview 
Panel will be comprised of First 5 LA staff members.    
 

EVALUATION DATA 
21) What type of evaluation data are currently being collected?  What type of software are they using 

to collect data? 
HMG LA is in the process of establishing the Data Collection and Analysis core component. Specific 
to HMG LA Pathways, evaluation data are not currently being collected. During Phase 1 of the 
project, the TA Provider will co-design with the Unifying Agencies an evaluation plan. As part of this 
evaluation plan, the TA Provider should work with each HMG-LA Pathways community collaborative 
to select measures appropriate to each of the approaches selected; and identify measures that will 
be consistent across the HMG-LA Pathways investment to facilitate learning across community 
collaboratives. This evaluation plan should also include potential logistical or methodological 
challenges, such as data collection software needs.  
 

22) Were any type of data collection required for the unifying agencies since the inception of their 
contract? 
Note that Unifying Agencies have not started their contract, with contract negotiations to begin 
Summer 2020. The intent is that contract start for Unifying Agencies will be October 1, 2020 – one 
month prior to the TA Provider contract start. As part of Phase 1 of the project, an evaluation plan, 
including data collection, will be co-designed by the TA Provider and Unifying Agencies.    
 

23) What (if any) role would the grantee play in the development of an agency-common data base?  
During Phase 1 of the project, the TA Provider will co-design with the Unifying Agencies an 
evaluation plan. This evaluation plan should include a data collection plan on what data will be 
collected, how data will be collected, and who beyond First 5 LA and the TA Provider will have 
access to the data. As such, if appropriate, the TA Provider could recommend the development or 
use of a common database. Note that the evaluation plan will need to be approved by First 5 LA 
before it can be executed.  
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RELATIONSHIP WITH LACDPH 
24) Although the contract with the successful vendor will be with F5LA, will the vendor also be taking 

direction regarding priorities and task order language from additional guiding entities such as LAC 
Department of Public Health (DPH) as the Organizing Entity? 
HMG LA is being co-designed and co-implemented by the DPH and First 5 LA. The DPH may be 
represented during meetings that First 5 LA staff hold with the TA Provider and Pathways Unifying 
Agencies, such as the orientation and planning meetings. While First 5 LA is working in collaboration 
with DPH, direction provided to the TA provider regarding priorities and tasks will be communicated 
by First 5 LA.   
 

25) Please describe the planning and coordination activities between F5LA and DPH. Is facilitation and 
planning of this group seen as part of the project?  
Separate from this project, the HMG LA Team of First 5 LA and the DPH hold standing collaboration 
meetings to plan and make implementation decisions weekly to discuss partnerships and activities 
to fulfill components of the HMG model. Facilitation and planning for these standing HMG LA Team 
collaboration meeting is not part of the TA Provider’s scope of work. However, the TA Provider may 
be asked to join a standing HMG LA Team meeting to provide updates about HMG LA Pathways, 
which would be addressed during the contract negotiation period.  
 
 

INTERSECTION WITH BEST START 
26) Please provide more details regarding how First 5 LA sees the HMG Unifying Agencies’ work 

intersecting or overlapping with Best Start, another community-driven collaborative model. 
As indicated in the HMG LA Pathways Request for Proposals that Unifying Agencies applied to, by 
design this investment encouraged applicants to identify and form a community collaborative that 
includes partners and agencies across diverse sectors that are part of the early identification and 
intervention continuum, which includes the delivery one or more services such as, surveillance and  
screening, assessment, and prevention and early intervention services with care coordination linking 
these services.  
 
In addition, collaboratives, are also required to include Supporting Partners, who will feedback to 
inform planning, implementation and sustainability of strategies identified by the collaborative. 
Supporting Partners can include organizations involved in coordinating and delivering  services  and  
supports  for  families  with  young  children, such  as social  services, like housing,  nutrition,  safety,  
etc.;  First  5  LA  Best  Start  Communities;  municipality  and  elected  officials; community; faith-
based; private sector; etc. Supporting Partners can also include community residents so that families 
of those utilizing EII services are represented, particularly during the planning phase.  
 
The make-up of each collaborative will vary. Some of the HMG LA Pathways collaboratives have 
identified interest in collaborating with their local Best Start Community(ies). Please note that each 
HMG LA Pathway collaborative is currently in contract negotiations and has not begun Phase 1 
where community collaboratives will be further defined. -  
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COVID-19 IMPACT 
27) What are the ways you can already anticipate that COVID-19 will affect the work described in the 

RFQ as well as the specific role of the TA provider? 
First 5 LA released an addendum to the RFQ to partially address anticipate impact of COVID-19 on 
the project. The TA Provider must be able to utilize virtual and telephonic communication platforms 
to deliver TA activities as well as have in-person accessibility. As such, proposers need to detail the 
method they intend to use to deliver the described approach (e.g., in-person, virtually, a 
combination of both) in the Narrative. 
 
 It was originally anticipated that the TA Provider would be able to conduct site visits and hold in-
person meetings and convenings. Given the realities of COVID-19, this will not be feasible at least 
during the initial phase of the project. We acknowledge that this may impact relationship-building 
with the community collaboratives and may make it more challenging to provide training and 
technical assistance.  
 

TERMS OF RFQ 
28) Regarding the RFQ terms of confidentiality, please explain what the following means: “it will be 

the proposer’s duty to act in protection of the labeled information.” 
 
As identified in Section XI. Terms of the RFQ:  
 

Each proposal shall be retained for official files and will become public record upon 
submittal unless the application or specific parts of the application can be shown to be 
exempt from disclosure by law.  The budget, scope of work and other contractual 
information may be included in board materials which are made public if the contract 
requires board approval. Each proposer may clearly label parts of a proposal as 
“CONFIDENTIAL” if the proposer thereby agrees to indemnify and defend First 5 LA for 
honoring such a designation.  The failure to so label any information that is released by 
First 5 LA shall constitute a complete waiver of all claims for damages caused by any 
release of the information.  If a public records request for information labeled 
confidential is received by First 5 LA, First 5 LA will notify the proposer of the request.  
Within seven (7) calendar days after First 5 LA’s notification to the proposer, it will be 
the proposer’s duty to act in protection of the labeled information.  The proposer’s 
failure to so act shall constitute a complete waiver. 
 

If a proposer is submitting any information that it considers “Confidential,” the proposer must clearly 
label the portion that is “Confidential.”   
 
If a public records request for information is made for the portion that was designated as 
“Confidential” by the proposer, First 5 LA will notify the proposer of the public record request so that 
the proposer act to protect that information.  The Proposer is responsible to determine the legal 
steps it needs to take in response to protect its “Confidential” information.   


